
 

 
 

Member Development Panel  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Thursday 7 January 2010 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 6, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 
 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Yogesh Teli  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Jean Lammiman 
Paul Osborn 
 

B E Gate 
Phillip O'Dell 
 

  
 

 
 

 
Reserve Members: 

 
1. Mrs Myra Michael 
2. Mrs Vina Mithani 
3. Husain Akhtar 
 

1. David Perry 
2. Ms Nana Asante 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Contact:  Mark Doherty, Acting Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8416 8050    E-mail:  mark.doherty@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

Member Development Panel - 7 January 2010 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 April 2009 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 16 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 
4E of the Constitution). 
 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

7. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE   (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Human Resources & Development. 

 



 

Member Development Panel - 7 January 2010 

 
8. INFORMATION REPORT - PLANNING FOR 2010 MEMBER INDUCTION 

UPDATE   (Pages 11 - 22) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Human Resources and Development. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS  STMD 127  

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL  7 APRIL 2009 

Chairman: * Councillor Jean Lammiman 
   
Councillors: * Paul Osborn 

* David Perry (2) 
* Keeki Thammaiah (1) 

* Denotes Member present 
(1) and (2) Denote category of Reserve Member 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL 

PART II - MINUTES 

93. Attendance by Reserve Members:   

RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly appointed 
Reserve Members:- 

Ordinary Member Reserve Member

Councillor B E Gate Councillor Keeki Thammmaiah 
Councillor Phillip O’Dell Councillor David Perry  

94. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members 
present in relation to the business to be transacted at this meeting. 

95. Minutes:

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2009, be taken as 
read and signed as a correct record. 

96. Public Questions, Petitions, Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put or petitions or deputations 
received at this meeting under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 19, 16 and 
17 respectively. 

97. INFORMATION REPORT - Member Development Programme Update:
Officers presented a report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources and 
Development, which provided an update since the last Member Development Panel 
meeting.  The report reviewed the end of the 2008/09 Member Development 
Programme and outlined events to be conducted in line with the Council Improvement 
Programme for the remainder of the 2009/10 financial year. 

Coaching
An officer advised the Panel that the Roffey Park Coaching Programme had been 
completed by three Councillors and that five other Councillors had been invited to 
complete the programme.  The officer confirmed that three more Councillors would 
need to complete the programme to provide a firm basis for 360 degree assessments 
and to obtain Councillor accreditation for professional development. 

IDeA/ London Councils Member Development Charter Update
An officer provided an update on the Member Development Charter.  He confirmed that 
all three Group Leaders and the Chief Executive had signed a commitment to gain the 
Charter.   This had been forwarded to London Councils and a proposed assessment 
date of 24 June 2009 had been established.  He added that three representatives from 
London Councils would meet with the Group Leaders and a focus group on the day of 
assessment.  The Chairman suggested that officers contact the political group offices 
to obtain a list of Councillors who could participate in the Focus group.  

Training Needs Analysis Questionnaire
With the agreement of the Panel, an officer tabled a revised Training Needs Analysis 
Questionnaire document which was referred to in the report.  He explained that in 
addition to requests from officers and Councillors the results of the questionnaire would 
help officers to refine the 2009/10 Member Development Programme.  Members of the 
Panel suggested that the programme should also provide training on governance and 
the decision-making process.  The Chairman commented that the type of training 

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 4

1



STMD 128  STANDARDS

offered should depend on the level of demand received from councillors.  She added 
that external training and cross-borough training was a possibility that should be 
considered in the future.  In response, officers agreed that responses to the 
questionnaire circulated to Councillors, would be collated in May 2009.  

Member Development Policy and Strategy
With the agreement of the Panel, an officer tabled a draft of the new Member 
Development Policy and Strategy.  He advised that the policy had been circulated 
officers for comments.  He reported that the draft policy built upon the policy outlined by 
Kris Hibbert of London Councils at the last Member Development meeting on 
3 February 2009.  In response to comments from the Chairman, the officer confirmed 
that he would: 

• incorporate Harrow Council’s CREATE values and the aims and objectives of 
the IDeA framework into the final document; 

• include the role and responsibilities of Councillors and officers; 

• invite feedback on the draft from voluntary organisations in the third sector; 

• ensure that the policy was communicated to all Members before the proposed 
assessment date.  

A Member advised the Panel that he would investigate the possibility of ensuring that 
the final version of the policy was ratified by all Members at a future full Council 
meeting. 

Member Development Accreditation Programme
With the agreement of the Panel, an officer tabled a discussion paper and copy of the 
North West Regional Employers’ (NWRE) report on a Member Development 
Accreditation Programme (“the Accreditation Programme”) available to Councils 
throughout the UK.  She reported that the Accreditation programme was independent 
of the Charter and would provide Councillors with an opportunity to enhance their 
training programme with the potential to achieve a post-graduate or national vocational 
qualification (NVQ).  She advised the Panel of the three options available that could be 
adopted by the Council.  These included: 

• enhancing the existing Member Development Programme after the Member 
Charter assessment; 

• providing members with an accreditation learning opportunity at NVQ Levels 3 
and 4 or postgraduate level as part of the existing programme; 

• combining the two options reported above. 

The officer outlined a proposed hierarchy for Member development which incorporated 
the existing training opportunities offered.  In response the Chairman commented that 
the support and qualifications offered by the Council would depend upon the duties and 
time management skills of Councillors.  In response, the Panel requested that officers: 

• research the different forms of accredited development programmes available 
and the processes involved in accrediting the existing Member Development 
Programme; 

• investigate the structure of NVQs on specialist Committee subjects; 

• contact the IDeA and Centre for Public Scrutiny for funding opportunities; 

• investigate the likelihood of establishing a Core Module training programme for 
all Councillors to complete with additional modules; 

• update the Member Development Programme database on training attendance 
to ensure that records were accurate. 

Review of Member Development Activities since the last meeting
An officer provided a Panel with an update of Member attendance at training events 
and briefings organised since 3 February 2009.  She advised that the Action Learning 
Event – Customer Service and Satisfaction, held on 11 February 2009, was well 
attended by Councillors.  She added that officers would use the feedback provided to 
develop and streamline the training offered to Councillors. 

2



STANDARDS  STMD 129  

Member Development Programme 2009/10
An officer reported that confirmed dates for the Member Development programme 
2009/10 had been forwarded to all Members and would appear as part of the weekly 
notice of meetings circulated by Democratic Services.  She confirmed that the next 
Members quarterly briefing session scheduled for 22 June 2009 would include a 
question and answer session on the Complaints procedure.  A copy of the flyer would 
be forwarded to the Chairman and the Portfolio Holder for Performance, 
Communications and Corporate Services for comments.  In response to Members 
comments officers agreed to investigate whether the subject matters would be relevant 
and informative at that particular time.  A Consultant to the Council agreed to develop a 
template for officers to complete when applying to provide training events. 

Planned Activity for Next Quarter
An officer outlined the timetable of planned training activities scheduled for the next 
quarter.  She advised that all members were required to attend the mandatory 
Disability Equality Duty training event to be held on 8 April 2009.  This was an outcome 
from the Judicial Review conducted on Fair Access to Care Services in 2007.  The 
officer confirmed that all Members had also been encouraged to attend the Finance 
Debt Management learning event on 30 June 2009 and that an additional session of 
the Safeguarding of Children Learning event would be timetabled at a future date.  The 
officer confirmed that future training events would be offered during the day and 
evening 

The officer advised that the Divisional Director of Schools & Children’s Development 
that outlined a proposal for an additional Member Development event on the main 
themes of Building Schools for the Future (BSF) initiative.  This would take place on 
30 April 2009 and the Panel suggested that the notification of the event should be 
branded and circulated as part of the Member Development programme.  

RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 

98. Date of the Next Meeting:   

RESOLVED:  That the date of the next meeting of the Panel on Wednesday 
2 September 2009 be noted. 

99. Vote of Thanks:
A Member of the Panel noted that as this was the last meeting of the last Municipal 
Year he wished to express his appreciation towards the Chairman and officers for their 
work over that period. 

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 7.35 pm, closed at 9.49 pm) 

(Signed) COUNCILLOR JEAN LAMMIMAN 
Chairman 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

MEMBER 
DEVELOPMENT PANEL 

Date: 
 

7 January 2010 

Subject: 
 

Member Development Programme 
Update 

Key Decision: No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Jon Turner, Divisional Director Human 
Resources & Development 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor David Ashton, Leader and 
Portfolio Holder Strategy, Partnership 
and Finance 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 

Yes 

 
Enclosures: 
 

 
None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report reviews progress in delivery of the current Member Development 
programme and outlines the forthcoming events for the remainder of 2009/10. 
 
Recommendations (to the Portfolio Holder):  
The Panel is requested to note the report and agree the proposed 
amendments to the 2009/10 programme. 
 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To finalise the 2009/10 Member Development programme.  
 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 5 to 10

5



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
2.1 Changes to Co-ordination of Member Development 
 
Dionne Sawyer, Member Development Co-coordinator left Harrow Council on 
6th November 2009 and Anita Patel-Keegel has now taken over this role. 
 
James Rose who has been engaged as interim Learning & Development 
Manager will also be supporting Member Development.  Ken Howgill 
continues to lead the project to develop the Member Induction Programme for 
2010. 
 
2.2  London Councils Member Development Charter  
 
On Tuesday, 13th October Harrow Council was awarded the Member 
Development Charter for demonstrating good practice in Member 
Development.  The Council will need to maintain it’s high standards in 
member development to retain the Charter and have the potential to aim for 
Charter Plus status within the 2010- 2014 term. 
 
2.3  Member Coaching – Update 
 
The Member Coaching Programme will be reviewed alongside the 2010/11 
programme as part of ongoing evaluation of the development of Members. 
Currently, four Councillors have signed up to complete the latest tranche of 
the Programme, which it is hoped will be completed by February 2010 as after 
this date Member Coaching will be postponed until post the May 2010 
elections. 
 
We are investigating working in partnership with Roffey Park to develop a self-
assessment questionnaire for Councillors, designed by Harrow and evaluated 
by Roffey Park. 
 
2.4 Review of Member Development Activities since September 2009 
 
The following events have taken place since 8th September 2009. 
 
Training Events and Briefings 
Date Topics No. Of Attendees 
8th September 
 

Cabinet Briefing 6 

29th September Members Quarterly 
Briefing 

12 

30th September 
 

School Re-organisation 6 

6th October Safeguarding Children & 
adults 

17 

6



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\7\AI00063735\JonTurnerNEWTEMPLATEReport72010_v10.doc 

8th October 
 

Facilitation skills 5 

13th October 
 

Action Learning Event 23 

19th October Safeguarding Children & 
adults 

5 

2nd November Part 1 Presentation Skills 9 

2nd November 
 

Cabinet Briefing 6 

16th November Part 2 Presentation Skills 10 

17th November HR Appeals Panel 15 
 

7th December Members Quarterly 
Briefing 

13 

8th December Cabinet Briefing 
 

4 

9th December Grants Advisory Panel 7 
 

 
 
We continue to evaluate each Member Development session by asking 
Members to complete learning log/evaluation forms. These evaluation forms 
currently reflect the benefits of learning for personal needs, benefits to the 
council and the community. 
 
We will review this practice in order to develop a process where Councillor’s 
are more able to reflect upon their learning. 
 
2009/10 Programme Update  
 
2.5 Developing Networks and Partnerships 
 
The Office for Public Management (OPM) has been commissioned to deliver 
an in house training programme for Harrow Councillors on developing 
networks and partnerships. This programme has been structured to run in 3 x 
2 hour sessions available to all Councillors. 
 
The programme was planned to run before the end of the financial year, 
however due to the limited time / space available in the remaining programme 
it is recommended that this be postponed until after the 2010 Members 
Induction. 
 
2.6 Members Quarterly Briefings 
 
The following table briefings were presented at the Members Quarterly 
Briefing on 7th December 2009: 
 

• Purdah - Legal team 
• Voluntary Sector 

7



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\7\AI00063735\JonTurnerNEWTEMPLATEReport72010_v10.doc 

• Housing 
 
In response to Councillors’ requests, only three topics were presented, in 
order to allow greater time for discussion at each table briefing. 
 
The Panel are invited to suggest topics for presentations by Officers or 
external Organisations at future Quarterly briefings.  The next Members 
Quarterly briefing in scheduled for March 2010. 
  
2.7 Planned Activity for Next Quarter 
 
Event Dates 

Provider/ 
Facilitator 

Venue/Time Aims Activity and 
target 
audience   

Cabinet Briefing 12th January 
2010 

CR 5 
5.00-5.30 pm 
 

TBC Cabinet 
Members 

Participation & 
Voices Training 

9th February 
2010 

CR 1 & 2  
6.30-8.30 pm 

TBC All Members 

Safeguarding 
(children & 
adults) 

17th February 
2010 

CR 1 & 2 
6.30-8.30 pm 

To raise awareness 
of the safeguarding 
of vulnerable children 
and adults 

Members that 
have been 
unable to 
attend previous 
sessions 

Cabinet Briefing 23rd February 
2010 

CR 5 
5.00-5.30 pm 

TBC Cabinet 
Members 

Members 
Quarterly 
Briefing 

4th March 
2010 

CR 1 & 2 
6.30-8.30 pm 

To enable Members 
to discuss current 
issues with officers. 

All Members 

Evaluation 
Focus Group 

22nd March 
2010 

CR 1 & 2 
6.30-7.30 pm 

To evaluate/feedback 
on the Member 
Development 
Programme 

All Members 

Cabinet Briefing 23rd March 
2010 

CR 5 
5.00-5.30 pm 

TBC Cabinet 
Members 

 
2.8 Financial Implications 
 
All member development costs have been contained within the budget 
allocation for 2009/10.  

8



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\7\AI00063735\JonTurnerNEWTEMPLATEReport72010_v10.doc 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jennifer Hydari X Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 15 December 2009 

  

 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: George Curran X Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 15 December 2009 

  
 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact: Jon Turner, Divisional Director HR&D, 0208 420 9309 
 
Background Papers:  2009/10 Member Development Programme 
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

MEMBER 
DEVELOPMENT PANEL 

Date: 
 

7 January 2010 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Planning 
for 2010 Member Induction  Update 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Jon Turner, Divisional Director Human 
Resources & Development 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor David Ashton, Leader and 
Portfolio Holder Strategy, Partnership 
and Finance 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 

No 

 
Enclosures: 
 

 
None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report outlines proposals for the 2010 Member Induction 
programme and is a supplementary to the main report reviewing 
the current programme. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 11 to 22

11



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

 
Section 2 – Report 

1. Purpose of report: 
This report updates the panel on the approach, suggested content 
and delivery options for the Induction component of the four-year 
member development programme commencing after the May 2010 
election. 
 

2. Recommendations 
The panel are requested to note the progress that has been made 
in planning for induction and to identify any modifications in relation 
to all aspects of the programme including timing, content and 
delivery options. 

 
3. Background 

The proposals are based on research conducted between 
September and November 2009 that was undertaken to ascertain 
the most appropriate model for Induction 2010. The research 
consisted of the following: 
 
3.1 Identification of good practice from across the main bodies that 

support local councillors: the IDeA, London Councils, South East 
Employers, Centre for Public Scrutiny, LGIU, other local, district 
and county councils outside of London, the Leadership Centre 
for Local Government amongst others 

3.2 Focus Group meetings with groups and individual Harrow 
members across all parties to gain a review of what happened in 
2006 and to develop ideas for 2010 

3.3 Regular meetings with the Head of Legal Services, the 
Divisional Director of HR & D and senior democratic services 
staff to steer the direction of the research and proposals 

3.4 Discussions with all members of the Senior Management team 
to gain their perspective on the content and delivery options for 
May 2010 Induction and the follow on programme. 

 
4. Policy Context 

Harrow has a robust and highly developed programme of support 
for members that has been enhanced in between 2008 – 2009. Full 
council approved a new Member Development Policy and Strategy 
in May 2009.An extract is reproduced below:  

 

2.0 Aims and Objectives of Member Development at Harrow Council. 
The policy aims to provide an entitlement to professional development for 
members and ensure they receive continuous updating on the key legislative 
and political skills frameworks that impinge on the day-to-day work of 
members. 
 
Implementation of an annual Modern Councillor Member Development 

programme should enable members to: 

12



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

2.1 increase the capacity of individual members in line with Harrow 
Council’s strategy 

2.2 gain the skills and knowledge required to increase the capacity of the 
council to meet corporate priorities and implement the council 
improvement plan to attain and retain excellent status 

2.3 engage with the implementation of the corporate values – CREATE  
2.4 review their own performance 
2.5 improve and further develop political skills 
2.6 participate in a development programme to meet identified needs 
2.7 increase their understanding of the framework of local government and 

the impact of national government 
2.8 develop a range of organisational and management skills to support 

them in their role e.g. presentation, casework, IT skills 
2.9 recognise the changing legislative framework in which the council 

operates and know their legal duties as a local councillor 
 

4.1 These enhancements and strengthening of strategy resulted in 
the achievement of external recognition for the quality of 
development support in the form of the IDeA/London Councils 
Member Development Charter in October 2009. The award has 
a lifespan of 3 years and upon expiry we can apply for re-
accreditation for the new Charter Plus award. 

 
4.2 The council is now positioned to continue making improvements 

to member development and consider seeking the IDeA Charter 
Plus award in 2012. Charter Plus is a more rigorous award than 
the original IDeA Charter and requires the council to support all 
members with Personal Development Plans (PDPs) and 
demonstrate the impact training interventions have on individual 
member performance, including their role as community leaders. 

 
4.3  The May 2010 Induction will be designed to form an integral 

part of the 2010 – 2014 member development programme 
aligned closely to the IDeA Charter Plus requirements (see 
Appendix 3). 

 
5. Proposals for Induction – Summary of Consultation with 

Members and Senior Officers 
 

5.1 Members Perspective – See Appendix 2  
 

5.2 Senior Officers Perspective 
Meetings were held during November with the Assistant Chief 
Executive and all of the Corporate Directors to ascertain the key 
knowledge areas that need to be provided for members as part of 
the Induction and follow on member development programme. A 
wide range of materials from directorates will be available as part of 
the Induction along with a Members’ Handbook.  

 
6. Management  and Supporting Members’ Individual 

Development 

13



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

 
6.1 Member Development; publicised through a stand at Members’ 

Open Evening where members can receive their Personal 
Development Folder and find out more about Harrow’s Member 
Development Charter and proposals for the 2010/11 
programme. 

6.2 A Training Needs Analysis questionnaire can be issued to 
members in June 2010 to take stock of the skills and knowledge 
needs of new and returning members 

 
7. Topics for 2010 Induction 

It is clear from the member Focus groups and consultations with 
officers that a core programme of mandatory development is 
required for members immediately after the elections on 6th May.  
 
7.1 The key topics that need to be covered are: Member probity and 

ethics: introduction to the Code of Conduct, Planning and 
Licensing, Equalities, Finance, Effective working with Officers 
and using Harrows ICT facilities 

7.2 Other areas for inclusion: Overview and Scrutiny, Data 
Protection & Freedom of Information, Casework, Role of LSP 
and HAVS (see Appendix 1)  

 
8. Delivery Options and Assessment of Member Learning and 

Development 
8.1 Key to the success of the programme will be the necessity of 

actively engaging members in learning the skills and knowledge 
required to be an effective councillor. 

 
8.2 Options for delivery of knowledge and skills include a range of 

methods that have been used successfully at Harrow in the 
member development programme and include: 

- round table briefings with Question and Answers 
- case study / scenarios with questions 
- formal presentations 
- Action Learning events 
- e-learning using the Modern Councillor programme from 

learning pool (15 modules) 
- member exemplar presentations of good practice 
- hands on shadowing of council services e.g. call centre 
- workshops using practice of skills and role play e.g. chairing 

skills, presentation skills 
- external use of IDeA peers and other members from 

neighbouring councils 
- use of ex Harrow members to support new members, e.g. 

casework 
 

8.3 Assessment of learning could be introduced for a range of 
mandatory areas. For example, at the end of Licensing training 
mini knowledge tests can be used to check learning. This could 
possibly be extended to other areas such as Planning and 

14



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

Finance. Certificate of completion of each course could be 
issued to members.  

 
9. Evaluation 

9.1 The induction programme and follow on 4 year member 
development programme will be evaluated through a mix of end 
of session feedback questionnaires, follow up Focus groups and 
follow up impact questionnaires to gauge the impact upon 
performance.  

 
9.2 It is suggested that a new questionnaire is devised that asks 

members to make comments on how the learning and 
development activities have helped them develop their ward 
councillor role and improve their performance. Aligned to 
Charter Plus is the requirement to assess the impact of member 
activity upon the community. A starting point for this is the 
current questionnaire that asks members to self-report on the 
value of development activities for individual learning, benefits to 
the council and the community. 

 
10. Funding 

The induction programme will be funded from the existing Capital 
Member Development Budget. 

 
Appendix 1 
 
Outline Programme for Induction 2010 
Aim  
The programme aims to ensure that new and returning members gain an 
appreciation of the role of the modern councillor and the competencies and 
behaviours required to be effective as an individual member of the council and 
as a community leader, aligned to the IDeA Member Development Charter 
Plus criteria 
Objectives: 
Through participating in the induction and follow on development 
programme, members will have an opportunity to: 

• Appreciate the structure of the council and the main functions and 
services provided 

• Identify the functions of the council that are governed by statute and 
the associated mandatory responsibilities of councillors 

• Familiarise themselves with role of the executive, key officers and 
functions  

• Gain a knowledge and understanding of the Code of Conduct and 
appreciate the implications for non-compliance  

• Gain the required knowledge to act as an effective member of 
committees e.g. Planning, Licensing 

• Develop a range of skills to support their role, e.g. chairing, public 
speaking, community leadership  

• Appreciate the respective roles of member and officer and codes 
governing relations 

15



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

• Define the function of Overview and Scrutiny within the council and the 
role of members in critically evaluating decisions made by the council, 
partners and stakeholders 

• Review development needs, plan and undertake relevant learning and 
evaluate performance through regular maintenance of a PDP and 
Personal Development Handbook 

 
Proposed DRAFT Induction Programme Timetable (May 2010 – 
October/November 2010) 
 
Session Topic Delivery 

Method 
Led by Time / Date Venue 

Members 
Open evening 
Members will 
be provided  
with a 
feedback 
questionnaire 
at the end to 
request more 
in-depth 
sessions on 
topics later on 
in the 
programme 

Presentations 
and Q & A 
with 
Members 
Handbook 
plus 
Marketplace 
of stands for 
each 
Directorate 

Chief Executive, 
Leader, Corporate 
Directors, Head of 
Legal, Democratic 
Services team 

Suggest: Monday 
10th May 2010 
6.30 – 10pm 

Civic 
Centre 

Licensing TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Planning TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Data 
protection 
and freedom 
of information 

Presentation, 
Contextual 
Case Studies 

TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Equalities  TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Finance: 
introduction 
and overview 
of local 
government 
Finance 

TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Effective 
officer-
member 
working 
relations 

TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Using 
Harrow’s ICT 
facilities  

Small groups 
& 1:1 

TBC TBA Civic 
Centre 

Borough Tour  TBA TBA TBA Across 
borough

16



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 

TBA TBA TBA Civic 
Centre 

Role of Third 
Sector / Local 
Strategic 
Partnerships 

TBA Local 
Stakeholders/HAVS

TBA TBA 

Managing 
Casework: 

Small group 
workshops 

Corporate  
Complaints Team  

June/July/Sept/Oct 
2010 

Civic 
Centre 

Personal 
Development 
Plans / 
Learning 
Needs 
Questionnaire 

Online self 
assessment 
TBA 

TBA July/September/Oct 
2010 

Civic 
Centre 

Chairing 
Skills 

Workshops TBA Sept/Oct/Nov 2010 TBA 

 
Appendix 2 Focus Group Notes from Consultations 
 
Focus Group 1 with Conservative Group was held on 21 10 09 
Focus discussion 2 with Lib-Dem Group with one member on 30 10 09  
Focus Group 3 with Labour Leader and Group on 6 11 09 
 
Conservative Focus Group  
Cllr Susan Hall 
Cllr Jean Lammiman (seen separately) 
Cllr Paul Osborn 
Cllr Yogish Teli 
 

• Members felt overwhelmed with too much information too soon at the 
2006 Induction although the standard of the induction was generally 
high 

• A number of sessions, e.g. Code of Conduct, Equalities, statutory 
training for Planning & Licensing etc – need reinforcement later in 
programme – Code of Conduct needs to be contextual with practical 
case studies – not just a presentation 

• Members feel that all new councillors and returning councillors should 
be made aware of their requirement to participate in member training 
and development from the outset – a display stand and presentation on 
member development is required at Members Open Evening 

• Have set standards and a requirement for all members to continually 
update a Personal Development Plan (note: this is required for Charter 
Plus) 

• Sessions need to be more engaging, not just presentations – and 
members need to be assessed on what they have learnt. They want 
officers to be confident in challenging members to demonstrate they 
have learnt mandatory knowledge 

• Action Learning events and follow on Action Learning sets need to be 
embedded into the programme from the outset 

• Briefings should be offered at Group Meetings once a month  
• Follow up evaluation is required and there needs to be a measure of 

the impact on training upon individual member performance, the 

17



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

council and benefits to the community (again- required for Charter 
Plus) 

• Members require training in basic constitutional matters including 
protocols for speaking at meetings and chairing skills 

• Materials for Induction need to be made available on a members area 
of the main Harrow website and available from home / any location 

• Priorities for members May – October 2010 include: Code of Conduct, 
Scrutiny, Equalities, Mandatory training on Planning/Licensing as soon 
as members are allocated, Chairing Skills, Corporate 
Parenting/Safeguarding, Data Protection & Confidentiality, 
Presentation Skills, role specific training for Cabinet members, 
Member- Officer relations and Protocols 

• Working with Residents and Casework seen also as a priority with 
clear information to members on what they can and cannot do; clear 
referral points required on which officers can assist with 
residents/casework issues 

• IT – members would benefit from being able to access web based 
member development packages from home. Improved IT access and 
facilities needed (Note: recommended as an Action in the London 
Council Member Development Charter Assessment Report) 

 
Labour Focus Group  
Cllr Bill Stephenson (seen separately) 
Cllr Phil O’Dell 
Cllr Nizam Ismail 
Cllr Thaya Idaikkadar 
Cllr Krishna James 
Cllr Rekha Shah 
 

• It would be useful to have Stands at the Members Open Evening 
representing each Directorate 

• All members should attend Planning – but the training needs to be 
more effective 

• Licensing was good in 2006 but Planning needs improving 
• Planning – members need to know: basic knowledge of how to read 

planning drawings and a basic Glossary, e.g. some members didn’t 
know what a front elevation and other terms meant 

• Chairing skills training required for all Chairman (preferably group 
based) 

• Knowledge of what to expect at meetings – agendas, summons and 
other terminology and what they mean 

• Licensing panel – questioning skills needed for members 
• These development sessions need to be more facilitative in approach 
• All committee members should have a guide “What happens at a 

meeting”? 
• IT training needed – remote access fob not working. More time needed 

on IT training 
• Training Needs Analysis should be given to all members after May 

2010 to identify needs 
• New members need a “who, what, why and how” of the Council 
• Codes of conduct and officer-member relations 

18



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

• Casework training and how to manage and refer should be delivered in 
June /July (early) 

• A Buddying system amongst members would be good – could member 
development provide a structure / guide? 

• Mock up of meetings would be useful – mock Planning, Mock Licensing 
and Mock full council 

• Shadowing teams including call centre and complaints would be very 
useful for members 

 
Lib-Dem Group – Paul Scott 

• Need to know which officers to contact to deal with which issues - who 
are the key officers and what can members expect in terms of a 
response? 

• Community engagement knowledge/skills training needed: how 
members can act as advocates 

• Casework, petitions, questions to Cabinet, presenting objections to 
planning 

• The role of new members needs to highlight their potential work with 
the community and they need an understanding of stakeholders: 
residents associations, HAVS, Police, NHS 

• Needs to be recognition by member development lead for all of the 
informal learning that goes on 

• Skills training needed in member-officer relations 
• Beneficial to have a range of methods to deliver member development 

including e-learning 
• The strategy used for delivering development activities will depend 

upon the topic 
• Workshops are helpful with input from more experienced members 
• IT access needs improving – the remote access key has problems 
• PDPs a good idea but likely to be resisted by long serving members 

who have acquired knowledge and experience over many years 
 

Appendix 3 
 
The Member Development Charter 
- Charter Plus 
Charter Plus is an optional higher level of the Member Development Charter.  
It is intended for councils that have already been awarded the Charter and 
want an additional challenge to further improve their member development 
and support. 
 
The Charter Plus differs from the Charter in a number of key ways.  These 
reflect: 

• developments in what is considered to be best practice in member 
development since the original Charter was launched  

• the need to address wider councillor support issues as part of the 
broader development of councillors’ roles 

• the need to promote local democracy and make better links between 
the tiers of local government 

 

19



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

It is accepted that there may be a number of reasons why a council might not 
opt to go for Charter Plus. 
 
It is envisaged that: 

1. Regions operating joint charters with the IDeA will introduce Charter 
Plus as appropriate to local needs. 

2. When councils commit to the Charter for the first time they will work 
towards and be assessed against the existing Charter requirements.  If 
they request the assessment report can show what additional work 
would need to be done to achieve Charter Plus 

3. When councils are due for reassessment they can opt to be 
reassessed for the Charter or for Charter Plus. 

4. An assessment for Charter Plus will first of all confirm that the council 
meets the requirements of the Charter itself and then go on to assess 
against the requirements for Charter Plus. 

5. Councils that fail to get Charter Plus will still be awarded the Charter 
(provided they still meet that level of requirement) and the report will 
indicate what areas they need to address to gain Charter Plus 

6. While councils would normally seek Charter Plus as part of the three 
yearly reassessment process, it can be done earlier subject to the 
agreement of the Regional awarding body. 

Examples of evidence requirements for Charter Plus 
 

General Requirement Examples of requirements for Charter Plus 
 

Commitment to member 
development 
 

• Portfolio-holder has responsibility for 
members development 

• Evidence that the budget is properly reviewed, 
set and prioritised by the cross party task 
group 

• Examples of how learning is shared with other 
authorities across the tiers of local 
government including Parish / Town Councils. 

 
Strategic approach to 
member development 

• Robust evaluation process is in place and can 
be evidenced 

• Member role descriptions exist and are 
maintained for all key roles including ward 
councillor 

• All councillors are offered PDPs and the 
majority of councillors take them up. 

• Annual programme of development activities 
published and circulated to all councillors 
through a variety of channels 

• Some form of impact assessment at the 
community level exists and is used  (e.g. by 

20



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\6\AI00063693\KenHowgillNEWTEMPLATEReport720100.doc 

asking for feedback from partners) 
 

 
Member learning and 
development plan in 
place 

• Members can identify positive outcomes as a 
result of their development programme. 

• At least 90% of all councillors feel they have 
adequate access to development opportunities

• Development is a regular item on all political 
group agendas 

 
Learning and 
development is effective 
in building capacity 
 

• Clear process showing how end of event 
evaluation feeds into impact evaluation and to 
review and development of the training 
programme 

• Examples can be given of changes made as a 
result of feedback and evaluation 

 
Supporting Councillors • Evidence that support arrangements for 

councillors are reviewed on a regular basis 
and that this review covers support needs of 
all councillors 

• Evidence that council reviews its 
arrangements and timings of meetings and the 
way it conducts its business to take account of 
cultural, faith, travel needs and family 
commitments of councillors  

• Evidence that the Council takes an active role 
in promoting local democracy 

• Evidence that the Council is building links with 
local businesses and employers to promote 
the role of the councillor 

 
 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jennifer Hydari X Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 16 December 2009 

  

 

Section 4 - Contact Details  
 
Contact: Ken Howgill, Project Manager, Learning and Development 020 8424 
1415 
 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Member Development Programme Update
	8 INFORMATION REPORT - Planning for 2010 Member Induction Update

